
 JOINT PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL/ 
WATER CONSERVATION/SAFE 
YIELD COMMITTEE WORKSHOP 

 THURSDAY, OCTOBER 15, 2009 
 PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES OF THE JOINT WORKSHOP OF THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL/WATER 
CONSERVATION/SAFE YIELD COMMITTTEE held on THURSDAY, OCTOBER 15, 2009 
in the ROWLE P. SIMMONS COMMUNITY CENTER located at 1280 EAST ROSSER 
STREET, Prescott, Arizona. 
 

  CALL TO ORDER 
    
 Mayor Wilson called the workshop to order at 1:00 p.m. 
 

  ROLL CALL:    
 
 PRESENT:      ABSENT: 
 

Mayor Wilson     Councilwoman Lopas 
Councilman Bell      
Councilman Lamerson   
Councilman Luzius  
Councilman Roecker (arrived at 3:07 p.m.) 

 Councilwoman Suttles 
 
 WATER CONSERVATION/SAFE YIELD COMMITTEE: 
 
 Chairman Budinger     Member Griffis 
 Member Benz     Member Nicoll 
 Member Hildebrant     Member Schmidt 
 
 OTHER ELECTED OFFICIALS PRESENT: 
 

Councilman Wise, Prescott Valley Town Council 
Councilman Anderson, Prescott Valley Town Council 

 
1. Presentation by Tucson Councilman Rodney Glassman re Tucson’s Rainwater 

Harvesting Ordinance. 
 
 Mayor Wilson explained that he had met Tucson Councilman Glassman a year 

ago, and he had run his campaign on water conservation. The City of Tucson 
has received national recognition for their ordinance on rainwater harvesting and 
graywater and he had asked him to give a presentation on the ordinances and 
the process itself. 

 



Prescott City Council/Water Conservation/Safe Yield 
Committee Workshop – October 15, 2009                                                             Page 2 
 
 
 Tucson Councilman Glassman gave a PowerPoint presentation, Exhibit A 

attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
    

Mayor Wilson said that they would entertain questions from the Council and 
Committee first, and then open it up to the public. 

   
Councilman Luzius said that he enjoyed the presentation. He said that 
Councilman Glassman had mentioned Microsystems for rainwater harvesting, 
but asked if they intended to do anything along the lines of macro systems. 
Councilman Glassman said that they were not looking at macro systems, such as 
water farms. He said that they were in a very urban setting so they were trying to 
focus on new development and set the bar for them. 

    
Councilwoman Suttles asked the Committee members how they would kick start 
the passive rainwater harvesting program as landscapers. Member Hildebrant 
said that it has begun. For years a lot of conscientious customers have asked for 
them although it has been difficult on some of the slopes in the area. He said that 
it was the simplest and least expensive 

    
Mayor Wilson asked what they have learned after implanting the ordinances. 
Councilman Glassman clarified that the ordinances do not go into effect until 
June of 2010 as they have to provide the developers and homebuilders with a 
long schedule to incorporate them into their plans. They have learned the 
benefits of providing for incentives for pilot programs and created a fund to allow 
them a little bit of money to get help. 

    
Councilman Lamerson said that there is a significant difference between Tucson 
and Prescott and the fact that Prescott does not have Central Arizona Project 
allocation. He asked if they have thought about incentivizing water billing 
structure for retrofitting existing houses, etc. Councilman Glassman said that the 
City of Tucson has had a very successful program in sending out experts to 
businesses and helps them redo their landscaping and water use. By doing those 
retrofits that they use about 100 gallons per day per person less than used in the 
City of Phoenix. 
    
Member Benz asked if they saw any change in flashing of the washes with the 
stormwater runoff and have they seen any difference in the need to treat their 
stormwater. Councilman Glassman said that in those areas where they have had 
active rainwater harvesting, staff saw dramatic impact in the way of runoff in that 
the infrastructure retained the water on the property. In that respect it was very 
good. As far as water quality goes, the rains fall so quick and there is so much 
rain it should not be a problem with quality. 

    
Councilman Glassman was asked if the developer is given a mandate on 
whether their program is passive or active rainwater harvesting. He replied that 



Prescott City Council/Water Conservation/Safe Yield 
Committee Workshop – October 15, 2009                                                             Page 3 
 

they do not; it was strictly in the hands of the developer. The goal of the 
ordinances is to put conservation firmly in the hands of the private property 
owner. When a developer comes forward they have to have a water budget and 
they have to demonstrate how 50% of it is going to be met using rainwater 
harvesting. 

 
Member Hildebrant asked if they took passive as their primary endeavor they 
would not be able to consider any savings in the stormwater overflow 
management. They would still have to skip the already required process of 
drainage management. 

 
Councilman Glassman said that it would depend on the design of the property 
and the landscaping. The savings is in cutting use of the water. 

  
Barnabas Kane, 822 West Gurley Street, asked Councilman Glassman to tell 
them about the political story that got him to this point. Councilman Glassman 
said that having worked for Congressman Grijalva and at the same time working 
for KB Homes he was on a first-name basis with most of the homebuilding 
companies in Tucson. Additionally, he has a realtors license and they were able 
to get all of the stakeholders around the table. He said that no one can argue that 
water conservation is not a good thing. The Council made a decision that there 
would be a rainwater harvesting ordinance and a graywater ordinance so it was 
more like getting on a train. They had a choice to get involved or not get involved. 
He said that there was a lot of discussion and a lot of compromise. He noted that 
it was the group, and not the elected officials, working on it. 

 
Councilman Glassman said that there were over 20 meetings and during those 
meetings people got to know one another. He said that it was a good community-
building exercise. 
    
Howard Mechanic, 309 Bloom Place, said that it was suggested that everyone 
knows it is the right thing to do and makes economic sense, and asked why it is 
not done voluntarily if it makes sense. Councilman Glassman said that the 
developers know that it is a good thing, but the problem is that in most cities it is 
not allowed—in most cities it is the exception. He said that by creating the 
ordinance it makes doing business with the City easier. Right now they have to 
convince the staff person that you want to do it and that needs an exception. 
 
Mr. Mechanic said that he believed that Tucson did not recharge any of their treat 
effluent. Councilman Glassman said that they use their treated effluent for golf 
courses, etc.; they do not recharge it. Mr. Mechanic said that in Prescott they use 
a large amount of graywater for the golf courses or recharge it into the aquifer; it 
is being utilized. 
 
Mr. Mechanic said that it was his understanding that over the last few years the 
statutes have been revised to allow municipalities to make it illegal to use 



Prescott City Council/Water Conservation/Safe Yield 
Committee Workshop – October 15, 2009                                                             Page 4 
 

graywater. After that was passed Chino Valley made it illegal to divert graywater 
from the beneficial use of recharging the aquifer to help reach safe yield in the 
region. He asked Councilman Glassman if he disagreed with a community that 
would discourage the use of graywater. 
 
Councilman Glassman said that he would not agree or disagree with others. He 
said that there is a difference between graywater and blackwater as blackwater 
can still go through the sewer system, be treated, and be used for recharge. He 
said that 40% of the water used on the average home is for landscaping and if 
they can capture that graywater and use it for vegetation they are able to cut the 
use of potable water by 50%. In their community they thought that was a goal to 
achieve. 
 
Most importantly Councilman Glassman said is that no one knows what the 
future of water is going to be so if they can require $200 to $250 worth of piping 
in today’s homes so that in those future times those homeowners can choose 
whether or not to use graywater. 
    
Rich Shroads asked Councilman Glassman if he had any experience with the 
Gila River Adjudication and whether SRP (Salt River Project) had anything to say 
about their ordinances. Councilman Glassman replied that he did not have any 
experience with the adjudication and SRP has not had any comments. He said 
that he has speaking about this across the country and a month ago the 
Associated Press did an article, so if they were concerned he would think they 
would have heard from them. 
 
Mr. Shroad said that it appears that most of the capture is being diverted for use 
of irrigation, decreasing the need to take it out of the aquifer. He asked 
Councilman Glassman about the thought of using stormwater runoff to recharge 
the aquifer. Councilman Glassman said that they have not; they have been 
looking at reducing the need for potable water for irrigation. 
 
Councilman Glassman said that they use their CAP allotment and have not 
talked about recharge credits. 
 
Mr. Shroad said that the Prescott area is looking at this regionally, and asked if 
he sees there being more regional acceptance of their ordinances. Councilman 
Glassman said that they have. Sahuarita and Oro Valley invited them to make 
presentations, which they did, and they have since then adopted those 
ordinances. The long answer is that the City of Tucson is the 800 pound gorilla 
so there is some problem with that. 
 
Councilman Roecker arrived at this time (3:07 p.m.) 

   
Shaun Rydell of the City of Prescott asked what percent of their development is 
commercial. Councilman Glassman said that he did not have the answer to that 



Prescott City Council/Water Conservation/Safe Yield 
Committee Workshop – October 15, 2009                                                             Page 5 
 

question. He said that he could tell them is that going forward 50% of the 
landscaping demand on all new development in their City can be captured by 
this. He said that they are not short-term fixes. They are trying to set the bar for 
new development so they can continue to grow as a community. 
 
Ms. Rydell asked if commercial was considered to be different than industrial. 
Tucson City Atrorney Mr. Ranking replied that commercial is considered to be 
anything that is nonresidential. 
 
Ms. Rydell asked what capacity they have in Tucson for designing and installing 
rainwater harvesting for the service industries. Councilman Glassman said that 
there are individuals that have been doing this for over 15 years. It has been a 
cottage industry but it is a growing industry and one with passion and creativity. 

   
Lou Bellisi, 1102 East Timberridge, asked if Tucson now allows new golf courses 
to be built within the City. Councilman Glassman said that he has not heard of 
anyone building golf courses, but the golf courses they do have do not use 
potable water; they all are fed with reclaimed water. Mr. Bellisi asked if they had 
any prohibition for golf courses. Mr. Rankin said that they have no formal 
prohibition; however, the public courses they do have rotate being opened to 
allow for limited use of the water. 
 
Mr. Kane said that his understanding of the story of Brad Landcaster down in 
Tucson was that he put in the curb and planted the tree, cut the curb and then 
called the City who came out and realized he had already cut the curb. He asked 
Councilman Glassman if he was aware of the City’s side of that story. 
Councilman Glassman said that he was running for the Council when he was 
working for a homebuilder when he went to the City to try and do curb cutouts 
and they said no. He met Brad Landcaster who showed him his property and he 
told him he was going to run for Council and get that changed.    
 
Mr. Mechanic asked Councilman Glassman if he thought it would cover new 
residential as well, at some point. Councilman Glassman said that rainwater 
harvesting is based on surface area and it is his belief that the economies of 
scale for commercial development are greater, which is why their Council pushed 
for commercial. He also felt that the most appropriate item to be mandatory for 
residential was the graywater plumbing, so that it could be done at the time of 
construction. He said that he was all in favor of the homeowner using rainwater 
harvesting, but he did not feel the City should mandate it. 
 
Heather Kinkade of the American Rainwater Catchment Association out of 
Phoenix, said that they have been trying to get these things into plans for years, 
but it gets stopped at the municipalities because the reviewers do not understand 
what they are trying to do and the process. 
 



Prescott City Council/Water Conservation/Safe Yield 
Committee Workshop – October 15, 2009                                                             Page 6 
 

She said that without an ordinance there is no way for them to understand what 
they are trying to do. With the University of Arizona they are doing a large plan 
with big basins, possibly underground and connected together, to use at different 
times. With the larger commercial projects they have been taking a lot of the 
cooler blow down water, but they need to have an ordinance. That is the only 
way ot support the developers in doing this. 
    
COUNCILMAN LUZIUS MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT A RAINWATER AND 
GRAYWATER ORDINANCE. Mayor Wilson explained that there was no action 
permitted at the Workshop today but he would ask that the City Manager place 
an item on the agenda along those lines to allow for a full-blown discussion. 
   
Chairman Butinger asked at what level of the City it took to educate staffing. 
Councilman Glassman said that there has always been a lot of understand. The 
developers understood but the City did not allow it. The goal was to make them 
the rule rather than the exception. The minute they put it on the agenda, 
everyone started paying more attention. He said that everyone came out and 
participated, and it is an ongoing process. 
 
Councilman Glassman said that they prepared two binders, one for the Mayor 
and Council and the other for the City Manager, to share their information with 
them. He said that the Prescott area will have their own stakeholders, but the 
binder can answer a lot of the questions. 
 
Mayor Wilson thanked them for the workshop and for Councilman Glassman and 
Mr. Ranking (City Attorney) for coming up. He also thanked those that came from 
the Prescott Valley area. 
 

2. Adjournment 
    
There being no further business to be discussed, the Joint Public Workshop of 
the Prescott City Council and Water Conservation/Safe Yield Committee held 
October 15, 2009 adjourned at 3:22 p.m. 

 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JACK D. WILSON, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 


